ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
CONFERENCE COVM TTEE ON SB 36
February 8, 2006
5:02 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gene Therriault, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Representative JimHol m
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 36(JUD)
"An Act relating to absentee ballots.”

HOUSE CS FOR CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 36(JUD) amH
"An Act relating to absentee ballots.”

UNABLE TO TAKE ACTI ON, REQUEST DI SCHARGE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 36

SHORT TI TLE: ABSENTEE BALLOTS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) THERRI AULT

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 05

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 20/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

01/ 20/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 01/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 01/ 05 (S) Moved CSSB  36(STA) Qut of Committee

02/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 02/ 05 (S) STA RPT cS 3DP 1NR
NEW TI TLE

02/ 02/ 05 (S) DP: THERRI AULT, WAGONER, HUGG NS

02/ 02/ 05 (S) NR. ELTON

036 COW TTEE -1- February 8, 2006



02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 08/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 09/ 05
02/ 10/ 05

02/ 10/ 05
02/ 10/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 02/ 05
03/ 03/ 05
03/ 03/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 15/ 05
03/ 17/ 05
03/ 17/ 05
03/ 17/ 05
03/ 18/ 05
03/ 18/ 05

03/ 18/ 05
04/ 06/ 05
04/ 06/ 05
04/ 22/ 05
04/ 22/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 27/ 05
04/ 27/ 05
04/ 27/ 05
04/ 29/ 05
04/ 29/ 05

04/ 29/ 05
04/ 29/ 05
05/ 07/ 05
05/ 08/ 05
05/ 09/ 05
05/ 09/ 05
05/ 09/ 05
05/ 09/ 05
05/ 09/ 05

(S)
(S)
(S)

NN AN AN AN AN AN NN NN NN AN NN AN AN AN NN NN NN NN NN
QLLLL LLLy

TITILLLITIIT TIIITITITIIITITZIET TITZTIIIIZTZE

NN AN AN AN AN AN NN

W TNESS REG STER

036 COW TTEE

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 36(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JuD RPT CS 3DP INR
NEW TI TLE

DP: SEEKI NS, THERRI AULT, HUGGE NS

NR:  FRENCH

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON: CSSB 36(JUD)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

STA, JUD

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

Heard & Held

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

Moved HCS CSSB 36( STA) CQut of Committee
M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT HCS(STA) 5DP 2NR

DP: LYNN, GATTG, ELKI NS, RAVRAS
SEATON;

NR: GARDNER, GRUENBERG

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

<Bi || Hearing Postponed>

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Moved HCS CSSB 36(JUD) Qut of Committee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT HCS(JUD) 4DP 1NR 1AM

DP: DAHLSTROM GRUENBERG, ANDERSON
MCGUI RE

NR  KOIT,

AM  GARA

VERSI ON:' HCS CSSB 36(JUD) AM H
CONCURRENCE MESSAGE READ AND HELD
CONFERENCE COWM TTEE APPO NTED

THERRI AULT (CHAIR), HUGGE NS, KOOKESH
RECEDE MESSAGE READ

CONFERENCE COW TTEE APPO NTED

SEATON, HOLM GRUENBERG

- 2- February 8, 2006



Annette Kreitzer, Chief of Staff

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned suggested changes to SB 36

Wi t ney Brewster, Director

Di vi sion of El ections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

P. 0. Box 110017

Juneau, AK 99811-0017

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to absentee
bal | ot s

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R GENE THERRI AULT called the Conference Conmittee neeting on
SB 36 to order at 5:02:39 PM Present were Representative Jim
Holm Representative Max Guenberg, Senator Albert Kookesh,
Senator Charlie Huggins and Chair Gene Therriault.

CSSB  36(JUD) - ABSENTEE BALLOTS
HCS SBSB 36(JUD) am H ABSENTEE BALLOTS

5:02:40 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT announced that CSSB 36(JUD) and HCS CSSB
36(JUD) am H were before the conmttee. He recapped the bill
history including the determ nation that to mnmake the necessary
changes, free powers of conference are required. He clarified
that the conmmttee could not undertake those powers and that the
nmeeting was to ensure that everyone understood what this
commnttee would ask the subsequent conference conmttee wth
free powers to consider.

He asked Ms. Kreitzer to conme forward and explain the issues on
behal f of the Division of Elections.

5:04: 08 PM

ANNETTE KREI TZER, Chief of Staff to Lieutenant Governor Lehman,
explained that there were issues with the version that passed
the House. Since that happened, HB 94 also passed. The sponsor
was informed and given the suggestion to delete all |anguage
from SB 36 that is now current law. Doing so would mneke it
easier to follow SB 36.

036 COW TTEE - 3- February 8, 2006



A second issue relates to problematic |anguage in Sections 5 and
6 of HCS CSSB 36(JUD) am H Both contain broad cross-reference
to AS 15.20.081. She read Section 5, page 3, lines 20 and 31 and
Section 6, page 4, line 18 and said she asked the Departnent of
Law (DOL) to | ook at the issue.

Sarah Felix (DOL) subsequently issued a neno stating that the
DCOL opinion is that Sections 5 and 6 relating to violations of
AS 15.20.081 should be nore specific. The sponsor was asked if
he woul d agree to take the issue up in the conference conmttee.

M5. KREI TZER said she had no further changes to suggest.

CHAIR THERRIAULT restated the reason for requesting free
conference powers and therefore a new conmmittee is because
| anguage is being considered that isn't in either version of the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG  questi oned whet her t he current
commttee couldn't request powers of free conference.

CHAI R THERRI AULT explained that the Uniform Rules state that a
menber who has served on an earlier conference conmttee nay not
serve on a later commttee on the sanme neasure. Typically free
powers aren't requested unless there is a deadl ock and although
that isn't the issue here, the rule still applies.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the commttee should
brief its successors on the issue of Wsley Education Foundation
v. Cox.

CHAI R THERRI AULT responded that was an initial concern, but it
isn't of concern now.

5:09:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG announced he would review the case in
any event.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Kreitzer if she or Ms. Brewster could
speak to the Wesl ey case.

MS. KREITZER said no internal review was undertaken. The issue
was forwarded to the Departnent of Law

036 COW TTEE -4- February 8, 2006



CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Kreitzer to review the suggestions
Sarah Felix (DOL) made related to Sections 5 and 6.

M5. KREITZER reiterated that Sections 5 and 6 of the version
that passed the House nust be particular about what behavior is
being crimnalized. An anendnent was drafted that was designed
to satisfy the sponsor and Legislative Legal. She noted that the
Chair was hol ding that amendnent in a pending file.

CHAIR THERRI AULT advised that Version N draft conmttee
substitute CS was prepared. It incorporates the specific
| anguage regardi ng what activity is being crimnalized.

He asked for verification that Sections 5 and 6 becane Sections
4 and 5 because sone | anguage had been dropped. He recalled that
Representative Coghill placed |anguage in SB 36 that was also
i ncluded in HB 94.

M5. KREI TZER agr eed.

CHAIR THERRI AULT added that Representative Coghill ultimately
agreed that the |anguage was inadvisable and it was dropped from
HB 94. As proposed, the |anguage would also be dropped from SB
36.

M5. KREI TZER said yes; it would be dropped from SB 36 as well
She continued to explain that the first sentence of Section 4
[HCS CSSB 36(JUD) am H is now |law. That was included in HB 94.
The second sentence in that section relates to a voter who did
not indicate affiliation with a political party or group. It was
added as a House floor amendnent , but at t hat tinme
Representative Coghill was not aware of the Dvision of
El ections policies and procedures when a voter doesn't declare
affiliation when registering to vote. She advised that Director
Wi tney Brewster was available to speak to what happens in that
i nst ance.

5:14:36 PM

VH TNEY BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eut enant Governor, explained what the division procedure when
a person doesn't designate a ballot choice on an absentee ball ot
application. If the person is eligible for nore than one ballot,
the division sends the individual a letter stating that a ball ot
designation was not nmade. If the individual doesn't respond to
the letter, no ballot is sent.

036 COW TTEE - 5- February 8, 2006



She added that the absentee ballot section has nore tenporary
enpl oyees this year so that increased effort will be nade to
contact individuals who don't respond by nmail. If sone other
nmeans of contact has been designated the division nake a phone
call or send an emamil to ask the individual about a ballot
choi ce.

CHAI R THERRI AULT remarked that clears up the issue about whether
the division is encouraging a person to vote one way or another.
The instruction nmust cone fromthe voter.

MS. BREWSTER said that's correct.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked for wverification that Representative
Coghill agreed to nodify the | anguage when HB 94 passed.

M5. KREI TZER answered yes. Representative Coghill indicated he
was confortable dropping the I|anguage from bill after he
reviewed the Division of Elections policies and procedures and
saw that the decision is solely the voter's decision

CHAI R THERRI AULT summarized the nodified |anguage in Section 4
passed into law in HB 94 so that section falls out of SB 36
Renunberi ng occurs and the sections nove up. The new Sections 4
and 5 include the | anguage suggested in the DOL enail

M5. KREI TZER sai d yes.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated the expl anati on.

CHAIR THERRI AULT agreed and said that |eaves the |anguage that
the commttee doesn't have power to adopt. He indicated he had
prepared a letter stating that the conmttee took no action on
any bill sections and respectfully requests that a free
conference conmttee be appointed. He added that this conmttee
woul d pass Version N work draft CS on to the next conmittee for
review.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether the next commttee would
have free conference powers rather than limted powers of free
conf er ence.

CHAI R THERRI AULT answer ed yes.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the current commttee could

remain constituted if limted powers of free conference were
needed.

036 COW TTEE - 6- February 8, 2006



CHAI R THERRI AULT replied this commttee could exercise limted
free powers.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked this conmmttee could acconplish
what it wanted to do with limted powers.

CHAI R THERRI AULT responded Legislative Legal advised that it
isn't possible because of the new | anguage.

5:19: 01 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked for a notion to report that the
conference commttee on SB 36 took no acti on.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGE NS said, "So noved." There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

M5. KREI TZER t hanked the commttee for its cooperation.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Therriault adjourned the neeting at 5:19:28 PM

036 COW TTEE -7- February 8, 2006



